
Proceeding to Assess Class II
Administrative Penalty Under

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION III

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103·2029

In the, atter of:

City ~ Lancaster
120 N. Duke Street
Lanc ter, PA 17608-1599

Docket No. CWA-03-20 11-0227
Respondent.

CONSENT AGREEMENT
AND FINAL ORDER

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT and STATUTORY AUTHORITY

I. This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO") is entered into by the
Direc or. Water Protection Division, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region III
("Co plainant") and the City of Lancaster, Pennsylvania ("Lancastcr" or "Respondent")
purs~antto Section 309(g) of the Clcan Water Act, 33 U.S.c. § 13 I9(g), and the Consolidated
Rule~ ofPractice Governing the Administrative Assessment ofCivil Penalties, Issuance of
Comkliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or Suspension of
Per its ("Consolidated Rules''), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. The parties having agreed to settlement of
alleg d violations of the Clean Water Act by Respondent, this CAFO simultaneously commences
and ·oncludes this action pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) & (3).

2. Pursuant to Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act ("CWA" or "Act"), 33 U.S.C.
§ 13~9(g), the Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") is
auth rized to assess administrative penalties against any person who violates any NPDES permit
con ition or limitation in an amount not to exceed $10,000 per day for each day of violation, up
to alotal penalty amount 01'$125.000.

3. Pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, codified at 28 U.S.C. §
246 , any person who has violated any NPDES permit condition or limitation after January 30,
199 is liable for an administrative penalty not to exceed $11,000 per day for each day of
viol tion occurring between January 30, 1997 and March 15,2004 up to a total penalty amount
of 137,500.



4. Pursuant to the Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.P.R. Part
19 (e ective March IS, 2004), any person who has violated any NPDES permit condition or
limitiion after March 15,2004 is liable for an administrative penalty not to exceed $11,000 per
day fi r each day of violation occurring after March IS, 2004 up to a total penalty amount of
$157, 00.

5. Pursuant to the subsequent Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40
C.P.R Part 19 (effective January 12, 2009), any person who has violated any NPDES permit
condi ion or limitation after January 12, 2009 is liable for an administrative penalty not to exceed
$16,0 0 per day for each day of violation occurring after January 12, 2009 up to a total penalty
amou t of$I77,500.

II. FINDINGS OF FACT and CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

6. Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of any
pollut nt (other than dredged or fill material) from a point source into waters of the United States
excep in compliance with a permit issued pursuant to the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimi ation System (NPDES) program under Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1342.

7. Section 402(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1342(a), provides that the Administrator of
EPA ay issue permits under the NPDES program for the discharge of pollutants from point
sourc s to waters of the United States. The discharges are subject to specific terms and
condi ions as prescribed in the permit.

8. Pursuant to 40 C.P.R. §122.26(a)(9)(i), small MS4s require an NPDES permit if
they re required to be regulated pursuant to 40 c.P.R. § 122.32.

9. Lancaster is a municipality within the meaning of Section 502(4) of the Act, 33
U.S.. § 1362(4).

10. Respondent is therefore a "person" within the meaning of Section 502(5) of the
Act, 3 U.S.c. § 1362(5).

II. "Discharge of a pollutant" includes "any addition of any pollutant or combination
ofpo lutants to waters of the United States from any point source." 40 C.P.R. § 122.2.

12. "Storm water" is defined as "storm water runoff, snow melt runoff and surface
runof and drainage." [d. § 122.26(b)(13).

13. The term "municipal separate storm sewer system" or "MS4" includes, inter alia,
"a co veyance or system of conveyances (including roads with drainage systems, municipal
street, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, manmade channels, or storm drains): (i) owned or
opera ed by a State, city, town, borough, county, parish, district, association, or other public body
(creat d by or pursuant to State law) having jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, industrial
waste , storm water, or other wastes, including special districts under State law such as a sewer
distriat, flood control district or drainage district, or similar entity, or an Indian tribe or an



autho 'zed Indian tribal organization, or a designated and approved management agency under
sectio 208 of the CWA that discharges to waters of the United States." 40 C.F.R. §
122.2f(b)(8)(i).

114. The term "small municipal separate storm sewer system" or "small MS4" means
"all s parate storm sewers that are: (i) Owned or operated by the United States, a State, city,
town, borough or other public body (created by or pursuant to State law) having jurisdiction
over isposal of storm water. ... ; [and] (ii) Not defined as 'large' or 'medium' municipal
separ te storm sewer systems." 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(16).

IS. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §122.32(a)(l), the Pennsylvania Department of
Envir nmental Protection ("PADEP" or "the Department") has determined that Lancaster is a
small MS4 located in an urbanized area as determined by the latest Decennial Census by the
Bure u of the Census, and accordingly requires an NPDES permit.

16. Therefore, Lancaster is a "small MS4" within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. §
122. 6(b)(16).

17. Pursuant to Section 402(b) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1342(b), EPA authorized the
Com onwealth of Pennsylvania to issue NPDES permits in 1978. In 1991, EPA authorized PA
to issre General NPDES Permits.

18. On March 9,2003, PADEP issued a General NPDES Permit for Stormwater
Discijarges from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems a/k/a Authorization to
Disctlarge ("the Permit"). The Permit was scheduled to expire on March 8, 2008, and has been
admi

l
istratively extended since that time, and is currently scheduled to expire on June 11,2012.

40 P .B. 7159 (December 11, 2010).

19. Following issuance of the Permit, Respondent submitted a signed Notice of Intent
("N I") to PADEP for coverage under the Permit.

20. Following receipt of the NOI, PADEP notified Respondent that it was approved
for c verage under the Permit.

21. The Permit authorizes discharges of storm water from Respondent's MS4 to the
Con stoga River and Little Conestoga Creek and associated tributaries, but only in accordance
with he conditions of the Permit.

22. The Conestoga River and Little Conestoga Creek and associated tributaries, to
whic storm water flows and, at all times relevant to this Order, has flowed from the MS4, are
each a "water of the United States" as that term is defined at 40 C.F.R. § 122.2.



23. On December 2,2002, PADEP published a guidance document entitled
"Mun cipal Separate Stonn Sewer System (MS4) Stonnwater Management Program Protocol,"
3900-PM-WM0100h (Dec. 2, 2002), http://www.elibrary.dep.state.pa.us/dsweb/GetlDocument­
5473 13900-PM-WMOIOOh.pdf("the Protocol"). The Protocol includes six Best Management
Practi e categories called "Minimum Control Measures".

24. The Pennit, Part A.3., requires Pennittees to either: (a) implement the Protocol; or
(b) d elop and implement their own stonnwater management program.

25. The Pennit, Part A.3., establishes that for Pennittees that choose to implement the
Proto 01, the Protocol becomes a part of the Pennit coverage and requirements.

26. Upon infonnation and belief, Respondent chose to implement the Protocol.

27. Therefore, the Protocol has become part of the Pennit coverage and requirements
for R spondent as established under Part A.3. of the Pennit, and the Pennittee must comply with

the PjotoCOI.

28. Part C.2. of the Pennit requires the Pennittee to submit Annual Reports to
PADrP to report on stonnwater management activities perfonned during the pennit year. The
Penn t further requires the Annual Reports to be in the format required by the Department, see
http:! www.elibrary.dep.state.pa.us/dsweb/GetiDocument-731 09/03%203930-PM­
WM0100u%202009%20Fonn.pdC The Annual Report Fonn is incorporated into the Pennit.

29. On March 31, 2010, EPA issued an Administrative Order to Respondent for
te violations of the Pennit.

30. On September 1-2, 2010, duly-authorized EPA representatives conducted an
insp tion (including a file review) of Respondent's MS4 program (hereinafter referred to as
"the Inspection").

III. VIOLATIONS

Minimum Control Measure #5: Post Construction Stonnwater Runoff Management

31. The Pennit (Part A.2) and the Protocol (pp. 23-26) require the Respondent to
imPI]ment and enforce a program to reduce pollution in any stormwater runoff to the MS4 from
new evelopment and redevelopment that result in a land disturbance of greater than or equal to
one cre through, inter alia, the following activities: (i) ensuring installation of post­
conslruction BMPs as designed; (ii) developing procedure for monitoring BMPs and addressing
BMRs that are not operated or maintained; and (iii) ensuring long-tenn operation and
mainkenance ofBMPs.



32. The September 1-2, 20 I0 file review revealed that Respondent had failed to
comp y with the Permit, including the Protocol, by not implementing and enforcing a program to
reduc pollution in any stormwater runoff to the MS4 from new development and redevelopment
that r suit in a land disturbance of greater than or equal to one acre through, inter alia, the
folio ing activities: (i) developing a procedure for monitoring BMPs and addressing BMPs that
are n t operated or maintained; and (ii) ensuring long-term operation and maintenance ofBMPs.

33. Respondent's failure to comply with the Permit, including the Protocol, by failing
to imll'lement and enforce a program to reduce pollution in any stormwater runoff to the MS4
from ew development and redevelopment through post-construction controls violates the Permit
and S ction 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1311.

Minimum Control Measure #6: Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping
For Municipal Operations

34. The Permit (Part A.2.) and the Protocol (pp. 27-31) require the Respondent to
implei ent an operation and maintenance program that includes a training component and has the
ultim te goal of preventing or reducing pollutant runoff from municipal operations through, inter
alia, he following activities: (i) in Permit years 3-5, follow specified vehicle maintenance
practi es; (ii) inspect and clean catch basins; and (iii) train municipal employees in pollution
preve tion and good housekeeping.

35. The September 1-2,20 I0 file review revealed that Respondent had failed to
comp y with the Permit, including the Protocol, by not implementing an operation and
main enance program that includes a training component and has the ultimate goal of preventing
or re ucing pollutant runoff from municipal operations through, inter alia, the following
activi ies: (i) in Permit years 3-5, follow specified vehicle maintenance practices; (ii) inspect and
clean catch basins; and (iii) train municipal employees in pollution prevention and good
hous keeping.

36. Respondent's failure to comply with the Permit, including the Protocol, by failing
to im lement an operation and maintenance program that includes a training component and has
the u imate goal of preventing or reducing pollutant runoff from municipal operations violates
the P rmit and Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1311.

IV, CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

37. For the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits the jurisdictional
allegttions of the Complaint; neither admits nor denies. specific factual allegations, conclusions
oflal' and alleged VIOlatIOns contained In the Complaint; consents to the assessment of the civil
penal y contained In Paragraph 42 herein; and waives any nght to contest the allegations through
heari g or otherwise; and its right to appeal the proposed final order accompanying the consent
agree ent.

38. Each party to this action shall bear its own costs and attorney fees.



39. The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its officers,
pnnCI als, directors, successors and assigns.

40. The parties agree that settlement of this matter prior to the initiation of litigation is
in the public interest and that entry ofthis CAFO is the most appropriate means of resolving this
matte.

41. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(4)(A) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(4)(A), and 40
C.F.. § 22.45(b), EPA is providing public notice and an opportunity to comment on the Consent

has c nsulted with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania regarding this action, and will mail a
COPYIf this document to the appropriate Pennsylvania official.

42. Based upon the foregoing and having taken into account the nature,
circu stances, extent and gravity of the violation(s), Respondent's ability to pay, prior history of
compfiance, degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings resulting from the violations, and
such IDther matters as justice may require pursuant to the authority of Section 309(g) of the Act,
33 U.S.c. § 1319(g), EPA HEREBY ORDERS AND Respondent HEREBY CONSENTS to pay
a CiV~' penalty in the amount of sixty-five hundred dollars ($6,500) in full and final settlement of
EPA' claims for civil penalties for the violations alleged herein. This penalty amount is
parti lIy in recognition of the fact that Respondent has agreed to make an environmentally
benerlcial expenditure for purposes of developing an alley into a green infrastructure project that
is ex~ected to reduce stormwater discharges to the Chesapeake Bay. (See Attachment A). If
RespQmdent fails to make such expenditure and/or fails to perform the project as proposed within
24 m nths of the effective date of this Final Order, EPA reserves the right to reopen this matter
to se k additional penalties and/or injunctive relief for the violations alleged herein.

43. Respondent shall pay the total administrative civil penalty of sixty-five hundred
dolla s ($6,500) for the violations alleged in this CAFO within thirty (30) days of the effective
date fthis CAFO pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(c). Payment shall be made by one of the
folio ing methods set forth below.

Payment by check to "United States Treasury":

By regular mail:

U.S. EPA
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

Contact Eric Volek (513-487-2105)



By overnight delivery:

u.s. Bank
Government Lock Box 979077
US EPA, Fines and Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza
Mail Station SL-MO-C2-GL
St. Louis, MO 6310 I

Contact: Eric Volek (513-487-2105)

By Wire Transfer:

Federal Reserve Bank of New Lancaster
ABA = 021030004
Account = 68010727
SWIFT Address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New Lancaster, NY 10045
(Field Tag 4200 of the wire transfer message should read:
AD 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency@)

By Automated Clearinghouse (ACH) Transfers for receiving U. S. currency (also
known as REX or remittance express):

PNC Bank
ABA = 051036706
Environmental Protection Agency
Account Number: 310006
CTXFormat
Transaction Code 22 - checking
808 17th Street, NW
Washington, D.C. 20074

Contact for ACH: John Schmid (202-874-7026)

On-Line Payments:

The On-Line Payment Option, available through the Dept. of Treasury, can be accessed
from he information below:

WWW.PAY.GOV
Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field
Open form and complete required fields.



AdditIOnal payment guidance is available at:

httP:J .epa.gov/ocfo/finservices/make_a_payment.htm

Respondent shall send notice of such payment, including a copy of the check if payment
is made by check, to the Regional Hearing Clerk at the following address:

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO)
U.S. EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

-and-

Lori G. Kier, Esquire
Mail Code 3RC20
Office of Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

44. This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all
applic ble provisions of federal, state or local law and ordinance, nor shall it be construed to be a
ruling on, or determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit. Nor does
this C 0 constitute a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirements of the CWA, 33
U.S.C §§ 1251, et seq., or any regulations promulgated thereunder.

45. The following notice concerns interest and late penalty charges that will accrue in
the ev nt that any portion of the civil penalty is not paid as directed:

Pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA is entitled to assess interest and
late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the United States and a charge to
cover the costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim, as more fully described
below. Accordingly, Respondent's failure to make timely payments as required herein or
to comply with the conditions in this CAFO shall result in the assessment oflate payment
charges including interest, penalties, and/or administrative costs of handling delinquent
debts.

Interest on the civil penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to accrue on the date that a
copy ofthis CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. However, EPA will not
seek to recover interest on any amount of the civil penalty that is paid within thirty (30)
calendar days after the date on which it is due. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the
United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11 (a).



The costs of the Agency's administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and
assessed monthly throughout the period the debt is overdue. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11 (b). A
penalty charge of six percent per year will be assessed monthly on any portion of the civil
penalty which remains delinquent more than ninety (90) calendar days. 40 c.F.R. §
13.1 I(c). Should assessment of the penalty charge on the debt be required, it shall accrue
from the first day payment is delinquent. 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(d).

46. This Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order resolve only the civil
claim for the specific violations alleged herein. EPA reserves the right to commence action
agam any person, including Respondent, in response to any condition which EPA determines
may p esent an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public health, public welfare, or
the enyironment. In addition, this settlement is subject to all limitations on the scope of
resolulion and to the reservation of rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) of the Consolidated Rules
ofPra&tice. Further, EPA reserves any rights and remedies available to it under the Clean Water
Act, 3] U.S.c. § 301 et seq., the regulations promulgated thereunder, and any other federal laws
or reg lations for which EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO, following
its fili g with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

47. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed as prohibiting, altering or in any way
elimin ting the ability of EPA to seek any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of
Respo dent's violations of this CAFO or of the statutes and regulations upon which this CAFO
is base or for Respondent's violation of any applicable provision oflaw.

48. The penalty specified in Paragraph III.50, above, shall represent civil penalties
assess d by EPA and shall not be deductible for purposes of Federal taxes.

49. Entry of this CAFO is a final settlement of all violations allcgcd in this CAFO.
EPA Stall have the right to institute a new and separate action to recover additional civil
penalti s for the claims made in this CAFO if the EPA obtains evidence that the infol1nation
and/or epresentations of the Respondent are false, or, in any material respect, inaccurate. This
right sJiall be in addition to all other rights and causes of action, civil or criminal, the EPA may
have mlder law or equity in such event.

50. The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is fully
authori ed by the party represented to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to
execut and legally bind that party to it.

I. All of the tenns and conditions of this CAFO together comprise one agreement,
and eac of the tenns and conditions is in consideration of all of the other terms and conditions.
In the e

l
ent that this CAFO, or one or more of its terms and conditions, is held invalid, or is not

execute by all of the signatories in identical fonn, or is not approved in such identical form by
the Reg onal Administrator or his designee, then the entire CAFO shall be null and void.



V. EFFECTIVE DATE

52. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.45, this CAFO shall be issued after a 40-day public
notic period has concluded. This CAFO will become final 30 days after issuance, 33 U.S.c.
§ 131 (g)(4), and will become effective on that same date, 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(b).

Date:+-'-.L--!...1Q_~---.JI,-,-1 FOR RESPONDENT, CITY OF LANCASTER, PENNSYLVANIA:

Name: Charlotte Katzenmoyer

Title: Director of Public Works

II FOR THE U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY+--+-'----'+-'---

~
Water Protection Division

SO 0 ERED, pursuant to 33 V.S.c. 1319(g), and 40 C.F.R. Part 22,

this :t)04-V' da of "De C eAM 10 fJ;'\A.... ,2011

Shaw M. Garvin
~io al Administrator

U.S.E A Region III
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Doug Lamb Construction, Inc.
1180 leager Road

.- Elizabethtown, PA 17022
(717) 367·8662

Fax (717) 367-4251

PROPOSAL SUBMITIE TO

La~ester City .
-----

STREET

120 orth Duke Street
CITY, STATE 8nd-Z~E ----------~,---.---

I Lane ster, Pa. 17608

L_:~l_= ---J::~.--_-
We hereby subm specifications and estImates for:

.... P.r:oeet:..... 20.lLStreeUmprovemcnts ·····Contmetl· 2Gl1-10-

..................... ·····Change··Order·-#··-····I·=·····-:Alley··I4.~··:·I~p~~y~~~ij*~ •••..

...Att~~~f:~~~J:d.,~:~~~~~;;~~~~~~ .
=:~f~~~~~~~~~:;;- ·:::g~Hi::: ·H;~::;::
... ~.!lJQt!llre.eLo[p_eI:forated.(40~.each.end) 8GLR@$30.00 - ···$2,400.00·

14 total feet for the solid - use stand pipe 15 LF @ $ 30.00 $ 420.00
EndCaps-- -. '(2) ... @$100;00$200.01J
90 degree elbow/ 12" frame and grate (2) . .Ci!}$87S,o.o. $ 1,7?0,()()

...........-.- ····StiittibleT6itriickliaffic:H:20··

...... ~)Istllll~"I~i~~~Q!l".ret.eAJ!ey ,8 gauge wire...

.............._ - .
$ 130,480.00

$ 71,060,00
-$40;250;00 -

418 SY @$170.00..~r....~;.'" b,;.", 4" • .' (bri,k ,"=d=)=".=....=-2=3=o=-S=y=...=@=$t;~::.

lime llI'opooe here~~~;;;h malerlal and labor - complete In a~cordancB with above specillcallan;, for lh~ sum of: i

Balance itliin 30 days Rfter completion $ 130,480.00
I dallars ($ ).

Payment to be mtd9 as follows:

_I----~----

All malenal Is gulan,e8d 10 bEl a~ specified. All work to bEl completed In 8 workmanlike Authorized
manner according 0 standard practloes. Anv ellersllon or deviation from above apeclHcaUons Signalure --~&,"---,r£-
Involving &11118 co Is wilt be. executed only upon wrillen orders, and wUI become an eXIra I'~

Charge (7\/ar Mel bovs the 8ellmal&. All agMamenle contingent upon strikes, 8ccldflrlts Nole:
or delays beyond ur control. owner 10 carry lire, lamado and other necessary k1slIrsnce. withdrawn by
OUr workers are f lIy covered by Workman's Compensallon l!lsurence. ____ day'j"

rAcceptu ce of llJrop0l111( -The,boveprices, speclflc'l'o", ----------------.=J"""G
nd condltJons re satIsfactory end are hereby accepted 'rtJu are authorized Signature

to do the work as specified. Payment Will be made as outlined above.

Dale 01 Accepta ce: Slgnalure

[ -,.-



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

No. _~1 _

Dnle: 10/6/2011

OWDcr'sProjecl No.: 2011-10 Engineer's Project No,:
-------

Project: 2011 Street Improvements

Owner: Lancaster City

Conlfllctor: Doug Lamb .Construction, Inc.

ContInel Dale: 8/31/2011

The Contractor is hereby requested to comply wllh 1110 followIng chAnges from tho contract plODS ontl
speoificnllons.

DESCIUPTION OF CHANGES

Alley 148 Green Infrastructure
items not in contract

TOTALS:

NET CHANGE IN CONTRACT PJUC]?"

DECREASE In INCREASE In
ConU'oct Price Contrnct Price

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ 130,480.00 00.00

S 130.480.00 $ 00.00

JUSTIFICATION:

Install 8" concrete alley with pervious pavers in the middle
for storm water infiltration.

The changes result In tbe following flllJnstmenl of Contract PrJco nnd Time:

OtlgUlRI Contraci Price:

Contrflcl Price prior to this Cliango Order:

:Net (1I1crcIHI'a)(Dccreflse) ros\l1ling from this Chnngc Order:

Current Conlract Price InclUding this ChAnge Order:

$ 749,270.80

$ 749.270.80

$ 130 .480 •00

$ 879,750.80

___0 Days

__________ (Dole)

Con.lract TimC)·wlll be (lncrcnsed)(Decreased)(Unctiange~):

The dnte for completion of all work will bc:

1b.ls Doculhenl will become nsupplement to the COnlrQc\ nnd all provl8ion~ will apply hereto.

Rcque81ed By:
Owner Date

Recommended By: ""'_.

Accepted By:

Approved By;

Owner's Engineer

Contractor



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the date indicated below I filed the original Consent Agreement

and 1inal Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. Moreover, I hereby certifY that on the same

date sent a hard copy of the foregoing document to the attorney below by First Class mail:

Richard H. Friedman, Esq.
McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC
100 Pine Street, P.O. Box 1166
Harrisburg, PA 17108-1166

Date (~J 0 v1 \D IdOO~ ~l!/4
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel (3RC20)
EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
(215) 814-2656
kier.lori@epa.gov


